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EUROPEAN UNION 

DELEGATION TO MONTENEGRO 

 
 

CONTRACTING AUTHORITY'S CLARIFICATIONS 
"Support to the Digitalisation of the Montenegrin Public Broadcasting" – Supply of 

equipment  
Publication Reference: EuropeAid/129435/C/SUP/ME 

 
QUESTION 1: 
 
"According to clause 13 of Instructions to Tenderers, we would like to ask additional 
information for the tender in subject: The amount of the tender guarantee to be provided is 
30.000 Euros in the Procurement Notice and in Art. 11 of  Instructions to Tenderers, while it 
is 32.000 Euros at clause 22 of Instructions to Tenderers. Please specify the correct amount of 
the tender guarantee to be provided." 
 
ANSWER 1: 
 
The amount in the Article 22 of the Instructions to Tenderers is a typing mistake. Therefore, 
the amount of the tender guarantee is 30,000€, as specified in the Procurement Notice. 
 
QUESTION 2: 
 
"According to clause 13 of Instructions to Tenderers, we would like to ask additional 
information for the tender in subject: With reference to Art. 11 of Special Conditions, a bank 
guarantee is required as performance guarantee. Please kindly confirm that only a 
performance guarantee issued by a bank is accepted. " 
 
ANSWER 2: 
 
The Financial Regulation (FR) and its implementing rules (IR) provide for different 
categories of guarantees in connection with procurement (Articles 98(2) FR and 144 IR; 
Article 102(b) FR); Article 102(2)(a) FR and (Article 151(2) IR). Pursuant to these rules the 
requirements regarding the guarantor has been expressly laid down in the Articles 150(2) and 
182(3) of Commission Regulation (EC, EURATOM) No 478/2007 of 23 April 2007 
amending Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2342/2002 laying down detailed rules for the 
implementation of Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 1605/2002 on the Financial 
Regulation applicable to the general budget of the European Communities. Article 150(2) IR 
"The guarantee shall be supplied by a bank or an authorised financial institution. It may be 
replaced by a joint and several guarantee by a third party." Article 182(3) IR "The guarantee 
shall be provided by an approved bank or financial institution established in one of the 
Member States. When the beneficiary is established in a third country, the authorising officer 
responsible may agree that a bank or financial institution established in that third country may 
provide the guarantee if he considers that the bank or financial institution offers equivalent 
security and characteristics as those offered by a bank or financial institution established in a 
Member State." Any guarantee provided by the contractor or beneficiary whose contractual 
obligations are covered by the guarantee, which is issued in accordance to the above-
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mentioned requirements and in proportion with the guarantor's own funds, may be considered 
as admissible. 
 
QUESTION 3: 
 
"Is it permitted that the filter is integrated into combiner?" 
 
ANSWER 3: 
 
No, it is not permitted that the filter is integrated into combiner; the output Pass Band filter is 
an integral component of the Transmitter. The combiner consists of DVB-T UHF input and 
analogue UHF wideband input for the Switch over period. 
 
QUESTION 4: 
 
"Is the analogue channel neighbor channel of digital or the distance between digital and 
analogue channels is more than one channel?" 
 
ANSWER 4: 
 
An analogue wideband input channel is designated for each combiner. They are operating 
channels of the other emitting devices on the sites and the space between the UHF DVB-T 
input and analogue UHF input in the combiners are  more than one channel except for sites 
Obrov and Volujica where the Transmitter with the critical spectrum mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 5: 
 
"Since the level of liability of Contractor is not defined-limited, please advise would it be 
more precisely defined by the Contractor?" 
 
ANSWER 5: 
 
The Contractor's liabilities are defined in detail in the General Conditions of the draft 
contract. Please also see Answers 37 and 38.  
 
QUESTION 6: 
 
"In the document: "006 AnnexII_AnnexIII_Technical_Specifications_Offer_Final.doc" please 
clarify the following questions: 
Under »General requirements of the Technical Specifications«, under point f) Power 
efficiency of each transmitter (without power consumption of liquid cooling system) must be 
minimum 95%. 

Is this here meant power efficiency of the transmitter or Power Factor Correction (PFC)?" 

ANSWER 6: 
 
By Power efficiency 95% is meant adjusted active Power Factor Correction. The Power 
efficiency of the Transmitters must be minimum 95% which means installation of an Active 
Power Corrector as an integrated part of the Transmitters that would provide for the required 
lower power consumption.                                          
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QUESTION 7: 
 
"Under column 2: Specification required there is written (Transmitters section):  
Nominal outgoing Power stated in the offer should represent the power measured after the 
band pass filter. 
 
Does this mean that the output filters are required inside each transmitter or in case the output 
filter is in the combiner then this solution is sufficient and therefore each transmitter does not 
need extra output filter?" 
 
ANSWER 7: 
 
The output Band pass filters are required inside each transmitter as an integrated part. 

 
QUESTION 8: 
 
"In case additional output filter is requested inside each transmitter please specify filter mask: 
critical or non-critical?" 
 
ANSWER 8: 
 
The output filters with critical mask are only required for transmitters on sites Volujica and 
Obrov. For all other sites output filter are required with non-critical mask. 
 
QUESTION 9: 
 
"Under column 2: Specification required there is written (Gap Filler section): Gap Filler for 
site named “Petnjica”, outdoor installation. Is there any outdoor shelter already installed or is 
here required an outdoor rack solution?" 
 
ANSWER 9: 
 

Yes there is an outdoor rack already installed but for DVB- T device the new outdoor case is 
required. 

 
QUESTION 10: 
 
"In the ANNEX II + ANNEX III there is following technical request for duplexer: 
 

DVB-T input (NB) ATV input (BB) Index 
ANEX II  

Site 
Input  
CH 

Power (W) Connector 

Output  
CH 

Power (W) Connector 

Max out. 
power 
(W) 

50 
Velji 
Grad 35 250 N   2,000 

  7/16 
2,500 

 
On the NB input is 250W of power, on BB input 2000W and on Output power is 2500W. The 
difference in calculation is 250W, is it analogue or RMS power? 
 



Address: Vuka Karadzica 12, 81000 Podgorica, Montenegro 
Tel: +382 20 444 600; Fax: +382 20 444 666, E-mail: delegation-montenegro@ec.europa.eu 

Page 4 of 37 

Can you specify all the channels for site Volujica and Obrov, where critical mask is required, 
are the channels adjacent or non-adjacent?" 
 
ANSWER 10: 
 

DVB-T input (NB) ATV input (BB) 
Index 

ANEX II  
Site 

Input 
CH 

Power (W) Connector 

Output 
CH 

Power (W) 
Connector 

Max 
out. 

power 
(W) 

 
Velji 
Grad  35  250 W   N UHF(IV/V) 2,000 

7/8" 
2,500W 

 

o The input Power on the Duplexer is expressed as a RMS Power .The Duplexer have to 
be offered with clearly defined the break down voltage value. 

o The analogue channels for broadcasting sites Volujica and Obrov are not adjacent to 
the digital input channel, UHF 35. Therefore, the Band pass filter for Volujica and 
Obrov should be with critical spectrum mask. 

 
QUESTION 11: 
 
"We refer to the tender guarantee provided in the tender conditions of the above mentioned 
project. The documentation only refers to a guarantee in the form of a bank guarantee. Our 
Company would appreciate to substitute the said bank guarantee by a certified bank draft (a 
cheque issued by Societe Generale, payable at Societe Generale counters and Delegation of 
the European Union to the Republic of Montenegro as beneficiary). Would such a certified 
bank draft be acceptable by the Delegation of the European Union to the Republic of 
Montenegro?" 
 
ANSWER 11: 
 
As specified in the instructions to tenderers, "the tender guarantee referred to in article 11 
above ... must be presented in the form specified in the annex to the tender dossier." We 
therefore cannot accept a certified bank draft as a substitute for a bank guarantee. 
 
QUESTION 12: 
 
"Item 1, 29 and 37 
1 kW Dual Drive Liquid cooled DVB-T Transmitter for site named: 
 - (item 1) Sjenica C24 (sazp Podgorica) 
 - (item 29) Tovic C35 (AZL Niksic) 
 - (item 37) Mozura C35 (AZL Ulcinj) 
 
Requirement is for Liquid cooled solution but:  
  - because at this 1kW power level, cooling is not a problem 
  - because foot print of liquid cooling system ( transmitter + pump rack unit + heat 
exchanger) is important 
  - because there is a limited space in existing stations 
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We recommend to get the possibility to also offer Air Cooled solution for these stations 
(Sjenica, Tovic, Mozura), bringing following advantages for E.U. Delegation and end-user: 
 
  - More open competition since there is almost no manufacturer offering such a solution 
except very few, actually 1 or maybe 2 identified, at this power level 
  - Cheaper, Easier and Faster maintenance (e.g. liquid cooling requires periodic-monthly- 
chemical analysis of liquid as preventive maintenance) 
 
If yes, can you specify external or internal Air system: 
 - Internal Air system: Air is taken in the transmitting room and exhaust in to the same room. 
 - External Air system: Air is taken in the transmitting room and exhaust out of the room 
using one air exhauster." 
 
ANSWER 12: 
 
Request for a specific type of cooling is based on the climate conditions prevailing at the 
different broadcasting sites as well as the experience of the beneficiary in the maintenance of 
the broadcasting equipment. Since it is necessary to take into consideration that Montenegro 
has climate with very high temperature during summer, devices with 1kW and higher power 
are required to have liquid cooling.  
 
There are more than few manufactures from European Union that produce the required 
equipment and for that reason the competition is open.  
 
QUESTION 13: 
 
"Item 3, 26 and 28 
500 W Dual Drive DVB-T Transmitter for site named: 
 - (item 3) Lustice C35 (AZL Herceg Novi) Liquid cooled 
 - (item 26) Durmitor C43 (AZB Zabljak)  Air cooled 
 - (item 28) Volujica C35 (AZL Bar) Liquid cooled 
 
Requirement is for Liquid cooled solution but:  
  - because at this 500W power level, cooling is not a problem 
  - because foot print of liquid cooling system ( transmitter + pump rack unit + heat 
exchanger) is important 
  - because there is a limited space in existing stations 
We recommend to get the possibility to also offer Air Cooled solution for these stations 
(Lustice and Volujica), bringing following advantages for E.U. Delegation and end-user: 
 
 - More open competition since there is almost no manufacturer offering such a solution 
except very few, actually 1 or maybe 2 identified, at this power level 
 - Cheaper, Easier and Faster maintenance (e.g. liquid cooling require periodic-monthly- 
chemical analysis of liquid as preventive maintenance) 
 - Same spare parts than those used for Durmitor Site 
 
If yes, can you specify external or internal Air system: 
 - Internal Air system: Air is taken in the transmitting room and exhaust in to the same room. 
 - External Air system: Air is taken in the transmitting room and exhaust out of the room 
using one air exhauster."  
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ANSWER 13: 
 
Taking into consideration the comment from the questions these clarifications are allowing 
potential bidders to offer Air Cooled solution for 500 W power level. 
 
There are more than few manufactures from European Union that produce the required 
equipment and for that reason the competition is open.  
 
In regard to the Air system it is an External Air system: Air is taken in the transmitting room 
and exhaust out of the room using one air exhauster. 
 
QUESTION 14: 
 
"Item 1 to 43 
RF Band Pass Filter (item 1 to item 43) 
 
The nominal outgoing Power is requested after the band pass filter, we understand RF 
diplexer will perform filtering, however to avoid confusion:  Thanks to clarify if independent 
RF Band Pass Filter are requested for each equipment (i.e. between Transmitter output and 
RF diplexer input) OR if the requested RF channel combiners (RF Diplexer) will perform the 
function of the RF band pass filter." 
 
ANSWER 14: 
 
An independent and built in Band Pass Filter is required next to the filter on the DVB-T input 
of diplexers. 
 
QUESTION 15: 
 
"Item 89 
Rigid line HF 1 5/8” Quantity: 30m - ok 
Band for rigid line GF 1 5/8” Quantity: 16 pieces - ? 
Connection accessories for rigid line 1 5/8” Quantity: 8 pieces - ? 
 
Can we have the details of the mentioned items: 
Band for rigid line GF 1 5/8” Quantity: 16 pieces 
Connection accessories for rigid line 1 5/8” Quantity: 8 pieces." 
 
ANSWER 15: 
 
Depending of offered type of rigid line and elbows, the requirements are as follows: 16 
Elbows and their adequate kits (flanged coupling kit or un-flanged coupling kit; for 16 pieces 
of wall hangers and 16 pieces of clamps. 
 
QUESTION 16: 
 
"Item 2 
100W Dual Drive Air cooled DVB-T Transmitter for site named: 
Stegvas C35 (AZL Ulcinj) 
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No Duplexer is required for the site Stegas, please confirm. Do we have to propose a Rf Band 
pass Filter?" 
 
ANSWER 16: 
 

That is right - no diplexer is required for the broadcasting site of Stegvas. The supplier will 
have to propose (install) RF band pass filter in transmitter for site Stegvas. 

 
QUESTION 17: 
 
"Item 52 
TV Duplexer for site named: Pinjes C35 
DVB-T input – Channel (UHF IV)-35 
Connector type N female (50W) 
Analogue channel input (UHF IV/V) 
Connector type N female (500W) 
Duplexer Power capacity up to 600,00W 
Corresponding transmitter (item 10) request is 25W DVB-T 
Please confirm if requested diplexer DVB-T input power is correct (50w while for other 25w 
sites requirement is 25w)?" 
 
ANSWER 17: 
 
It is a printing/typing error: the correct DVB-T diplexer input is 25W. 
 
QUESTION 18: 
 
"Item 79  
TV Duplexer for site named: Mozura C35 
DVB-T channel input (UHF IV)-35, 
Connector 7/16” Female (800W) 
Analogue channel input (UHF IV/V), 
Connector 7/16” Female (1000W) 
Duplexer power capacity up to 2000W 
Corresponding transmitter Mozura (item 37) request is 1kW DVB-T Please confirm if 
requested diplexer DVB-T input power  is correct (800w i.e. not enough vs. 1kW)?" 
 
ANSWER 18: 
 
It is a printing error: the correct required Nominal Power for Transmitter on Site Mozura is 
1000W and not 800W. Thus the DVB-T diplexer input for the broadcasting site of Mozura is 
1000W. 
 
QUESTION 19: 
 
"Item 78 
TV Duplexer for site named: Stojkovac C35 
DVB-T channel input(UHF IV)-35, 
connector N Female (20W) 
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Analogue channel input (UHF IV/V), 
connector N Female (40W) 
Duplexer power capacity up to 100W 
 
Corresponding transmitter (item 36) request is 10W DVB-T Please confirm if requested 
diplexer DVB-T input power is correct  (20w while for other 10w sites requirement is 10w)?" 
 
ANSWER 19: 
 
It is a printing/typing error: the correct DVB-T duplexer input is 10W. 
 
QUESTION 20: 
 
"Item 81 
TV Duplexer for site named: Fraskanjel C35 
DVB-T channel input(UHF IV)-35, 
Connector N Female (20W) 
Analogue channel input (UHF IV/V), 
Connector N Female (40W) 
Duplexer power capacity up to 100W 
Corresponding transmitter (item 39) request is 10W DVB-T 
Please confirm if requested diplexer DVB-T input power is correct  20w while for other 10w 
sites requirement is 10w)?" 
 
ANSWER 20: 
 
It is a printing/typing error: the correct DVB-T duplexer input is 10W. 
 
QUESTION 21: 
 
"Item 85 
TV Duplexer for site named: Petnjica C43 
DVB-T channel input (UHF IV)-43, 
Connector N Female (25W) 
Analogue channel input (UHF IV/V), 
Connector N Female (40W)  
Duplexer power capacity up to 100 W 
Corresponding to the Outdoor Gap Filler (item 43), please clarify the mechanical location of 
this TV Diplexer (i.e. outdoor with gap filler or indoor)?" 
 
ANSWER 21: 
 
The mechanical location of the diplexer for broadcasting site Petnica is required to be in new 
outdoor case where the Gap Filler should be placed. 
 
QUESTION 22: 
 
"What is the minimal separation between channels (Analogue and Digital)? In other words 
what will be the minimal frequency spacing between Analogue and Digital inputs (2 UHF 
channels, 3 UHF Channels...)?" 
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ANSWER 22: 
 
The minimum separation between channels Analogue and Digital is more than 1 channel 
space except for sites Obrov and Volujica where the Band pass filter with  critical mask is 
required. 
  
QUESTION 23: 
 
"How is defined the power on Duplexer broadband input, RMS or peak sync?" 
 
ANSWER 23: 
 
The Power on Duplexer broadband input is expressed as RMS Power .The Duplexer has to be 
with clearly defined the breakdown voltage value. 
 
QUESTION 24: 
 
"How is defined the power on Duplexer output, RMS or peak sync?" 
 
ANSWER 24: 
 
The Power on Duplexer output is expressed as RMS Power with clearly defined the 
breakdown voltage value. 
 
QUESTION 25: 
 
"It is mentioned that the Analogue input power is 10 000w with connector type EIA 1 5/8. 
This connector cannot withstand this power. Therefore we highly recommend use of 3 1/8 " 
connector. Please kindly confirm or comment." 
 
ANSWER 25: 
 
The comment is correct. The text was typing & printing error. The correct connector for 
10,000W Analogue input is 3 1/8". 
 
QUESTION 26: 
 
"It is mentioned that the Analogue input power is 2000w with connector type 7/16''. This 
connector cannot withstand this power. Therefore we highly recommend use of 7/8" 
connector. Please kindly confirm or comment." 
 
ANSWER 26: 
 
The comment is correct. The text was typing & printing error. The correct connector for 
2,000W Analogue input is 7/8". 
 

QUESTION 27: 
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"ANNEX II + III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS + TECHNICAL OFFER, 
Page 2/107 article e) is as follows: 
 

a) The supplier is obliged to provide training for 5 (five) persons from beneficiary in the 
production area for a period of 4 (four) working days. The days of factory acceptance 
are not to be considered as training days. All the costs for training, for example, 
printed materials, brochures and other learning tools (including an accommodation and 
travel costs for trainers) are to be covered by the supplier. Venue for the training will 
be provided by the beneficiary. Training will be organized upon agreement reached by 
the beneficiary and the supplier. 

 
4 (four) working days for training in factory on offered equipment is by far too short to 
answer in a professional manner needs and expectations of Beneficiary especially because 
several types of equipment ranges are required. 
 
This is why we kindly recommend an amendment of the duration by changing "4 (four) 
working days" by 14 (fourteen) working days. 
 
Our recommendation is based on arguments that invitation to tender requires from suppliers 
the delivery of High power liquid transmitters, Air cooled medium power transmitters, Air 
cooled low power transmitter, Gap fillers and some high-end elements (IP/ASI adapters 
mainly) meaning 5 product ranges. 
 
If beneficiary wants to master preventive and 1st level corrective maintenance for offered 
solutions with 4 working days this is not possible. 
 
Do you agree with amendment for training in factory based on 14 working days instead of 4 
working days?" 
 
ANSWER 27: 
 
The training requirement cannot be changed at this stage. However, the End User may make 
separate arrangements with the selected supplier on the basis of a separate contract, depending 
on their evaluation of the new situation after the tender. 
 
QUESTION 28: 
 
"With reference to Article 18 of the "Supply Procurement Notice" please find below our 
request for clarifications concerning:  
 
INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS, page 7/14, Art. 12.2 section a): 
 
a) for supplies manufactured locally, unit and overall prices must be quoted for delivery to the 
place of destination and in accordance with the above conditions, excluding all domestic 
taxation applicable to their manufacture and sale" 
 
Does "domestic taxation" include VAT?" 
 
ANSWER 28: 
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Yes.  
 
QUESTION 29: 
 
"Can we hand-over our bid package to EU delegation address (Vuka Karadzica 12)? If yes, is 
there any specific relevant applicable instructions to follow?" 
 
ANSWER 29: 
 
Yes, you can submit your offer directly to the EU Delegation to Montenegro at designated 
address. Your offer must be contained in a sealed envelope mentioning the publication 
reference of the tender and the other information, as described in the Instructions to 
Tenderers. There are no specific instructions other than instruction valid for submitting the 
offer by mail. 
 
QUESTION 30: 
 
"Have we to offer transmitters with output filter included or without output filter?" 
 
ANSWER 30: 
 
Bidders have to offer transmitters with output Band pass filter integrated (included in the 
transmitter).  
 
QUESTION 31: 
 
"Have we to consider Output filter with or without critical spectrum mask?" 
 
ANSWER 31: 
 
The output pass band filters should be without critical spectrum mask except for sites Obrov 
and Volujica where the critical mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 32: 
 
"Which type of duplexer have we to offer, double bridge or star point? Does the duplexer 
have inside the filtering function or not?" 
 
ANSWER 32: 
 
The type of diplexer has to be double bridge type. The Duplexer has to have filtering function 
and clearly defined break down voltage value. 
 
QUESTION 33: 
 
"Concerning the Duplexer: Are adjacent channel solution to be considered?" 
 
ANSWER 33: 
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The spectrum space between UHF inputs into the Diplexers (one DVB-T input and one 
analogue input) is more than one channel, except for sites Obrov and Volujica where the Pass 
band filter with critical spectrum mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 34: 
 
"Is there a deadline for installation of all the transmitters?" 
 
ANSWER 34: 
 
Please refer to:  
Tender Dossier - Special Conditions,  
Article 18 Commencement order 
18.1 The date for commencing the implementation shall be within 30 days of the signature of 
this contract by both parties and shall be determined by a commencement order issued by the 
Project Manager.  
Article 19 Period of Implementation of the tasks  
19.1 The period of the implementation of the tasks shall be 270 calendar days, starting from 
the date stipulated in the commencement order.  
 
Therefore, all activities under this contract prior to provisional acceptance (i.e. before the start 
of the warranty maintenance period) must be completed within 270 days from the 
commencement date. 
 
QUESTION 35: 
 
"Is it mandatory to install the transmitters one by one based on how each transmitter is listed 
in the tender? Or is it possible to install based on our preference?" 
 
ANSWER 35: 
 
The successful bidder will make plan of delivery and installation together with End User to be 
approved by the Contracting Authority, in accordance with prevailing weather and 
environmental conditions during the delivery/installation. 
 
QUESTION 36: 
 
"In the tender there are 4 allotment zones which are specified for each transmitter, but are not 
specified for the duplexers: Podgorica, Tvrdas, Lovcen and Bjelasica. Are these allotment 
zones the locations where the equipment needs to be received prior to the installation phase? 
Do these allotment zones apply for the duplexers as well?" 
 
ANSWER 36: 
 

o Allotment zones mentioned in the question are not the locations where the equipment 
needs to be received prior to the installation phase. The delivery site is DDP 
Podgorica, more specifically ST Predajnik Gornja Plavnica, Golubovci bb, Podgorica, 
Montenegro - the warehouse of the End User (RDC), which will be the only delivery 
site. The End User (RDC) will transport delivered equipment (properly labelled) from 
Podgorica to the each broadcasting site of each Allotment Zone and Sub Allotment 
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Zone. The End User will assist the supplier in the installation process of the equipment 
on the site (connecting the devices -cabling). The installation of transmitters with 
liquid cooling will be performed by supplier with necessary assistance by End User. 
The supplier will provide at least 1 (one) qualified engineer for the installation process 
to provide instructions and necessary demonstration of the proper installation of 
equipment and to supervise the whole process at each site. 

o Above specified allotment zones apply for the diplexers as well, except (Sjenica) 
Podgorica. 

 
QUESTION 37: 
 
"Regarding tender dossier No. EuropeAid/129435/C/SUP/ME, Support to the Digitalisation 
of the Montenegrin Public Broadcasting, please clarify following: 
  
In the ANNEX I: GENERAL CONDITIONS, Article 42 - Administrative and financial 
penalties, paragraph 42.2. (file 5 annexigc.pdf) is stated: 
„If the Contractor is found to have seriously failed to meet its contractual obligations, it shall 
incur financial penalties representing 2-10% of the total value of the contract in question. That 
rate may be increased to 4-20% in the event of a repeat offence within five years of the first 
infringement.“ 
  
Please explain the statement “Contractor seriously failed to meet its contractual obligations”. 
What are exactly the situations on which this paragraph is referring?" 
 
ANSWER 37: 
 
A non-exhaustive list of references to situations where the supplier may be found to have 
seriously failed to meet its contractual obligations includes the situations mentioned in 
Articles 12, 21, 35, and 42 of the general conditions of the Contract.   
  
The additional financial penalties made reference to in Article 42 relate to situations where 
the supplier has been found to have made “false declarations, has made substantial errors or 
committed irregularities and fraud, or has been found in serious breach of its contractual 
obligations”.  Such serious breach of the contractor's obligations may include various 
instances of contractor’s incompliance with his contractual obligations and it has been left to 
the discretion of the Contracting Authority to decide if such additional penalties should be 
applied on a case-by-case basis, and in particular, in situations where the other remedies 
foreseen in the contract (termination, seizure of pre-financing and performance guarantees, 
liquidated damages for delay, inclusion in the Early Warning System and the Exclusion 
Database, etc.,) would be insufficient to compensate the damages incurred by the Contracting 
Authority or any third parties as a result of the breach of contract on the part of the supplier.  
 
QUESTION 38: 
 
"Is the liability for indirect damage (consequential financial losses) referring to loss of 
property caused by the damage occurred, in particular damage due to delay, loss of profit, loss 
of use, loss of production, excluded from Contractor obligations?" 
 
ANSWER 38: 
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No. The Contracting Authority reserves the right to seek total compensation from the 
Contractor in the manner and to the maximum extent foreseen in the contract and the 
applicable legislation for any damages incurred by the Contracting Authority, the Beneficiary, 
their staff or any third parties as a result of the Contractor’s breach of contract or his other 
acts, or his failure to act or take appropriate measures when warranted by each particular 
situation. 
 
QUESTION 39: 
 
"If the liability for indirect damages is not excluded from Contractor obligations, are the 
financial penalties limited to values stated above in paragraph 42. 2?" 
 
ANSWER 39: 
 
No, the Contracting Authority reserves the right to seek total compensation from the 
Contractor in the manner and to the maximum extent foreseen in the contract and the 
applicable legislation for any indirect damages caused in the process of project 
implementation by the contractor to the Contracting Authority, the Beneficiary, their staff or 
any third parties. 
 
QUESTION 40: 
 
"AnnexII_AnnexIII_Technical_Specifications_Offer_Final",  page 2, at point f) it is stated 
that: " Power efficiency of each transmitter (without power consumption of liquid cooling 
system) must be minimum 95%." Should be considered power efficiency as Power Factor 
defined as the ratio of the real power flowing to the load to the apparent power?" 
  
ANSWER 40: 
 
The Power efficiency of the Transmitters must be minimum 95%,  which means installation 
of an Active Power Corrector as an integrated part of the Transmitters that would provide for 
the required lower power consumption. 
  
QUESTION 41: 
 
"Considered as an administrative issue, in document "Instructions to tenders", page 6, at point 
"11 Content of tenders" , "Part 3: Documentation" it is stated that "The  tender guarantee, for 
30,000€"  and in "22 Tender guarantee" "The tender guarantee referred to in Article 11 above 
is set at 32,000€ and ...." Which is the correct amount for tender guarantee?." 
 
ANSWER 41: 
 
The amount in the Article 22 of the Instructions to Tenderers is a typing mistake. Therefore, 
the amount of the tender guarantee is 30,000€, as specified in the Procurement Notice. 
 
QUESTION 42: 
 
"Which are the requirements (critical or non critical mask) for band pass filters mentioned 
along  "006 AnnexII_AnnexIII_Technical_Specifications_Offer_Final"?." 
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ANSWER 42: 
 
The offered Band Pass filters, as an integrated part of the Transmitter, should be with non 
critical mask, except for sites Obrov and Volujica where Transmitters with the critical 
spectrum mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 43: 
 
Warranty. In "006 AnnexII_AnnexIII_Technical_Specifications_Offer_Final" , page 1, it is 
stated " All equipment items must carry a minimum 1 year full warranty including all parts 
and labour, except where stated otherwise" . As in document "004 Special conditions_Final", 
page 4, "Article 32 Warranty" it is stated that "This warranty shall remain valid for three years 
after provisional acceptance". Thus, three (3) years is the required warranty correct? 
 
ANSWER 43: 
 
Yes, the requirement is that the warranty is valid for three years. 
 
QUESTION 44: 
 
"Today's technology allows design of compact, cost effective and energy efficient transmitters 
of up to 1.2 kW based on air cooling systems. We consider that, by forcing bidders to include 
liquid cooling above  its 0,5 KW transmitter configuration, the purchase becomes 
unnecessarily more expensive since the solution based on liquid cooling requires a more 
complex design while a solution based on air cooling is simpler, cheaper, more compact and 
more energy efficient. We would like to know whether a 0.5 KW and 1.0 KW air cooled 
based solution would be suitable for the tender." 
 
ANSWER 44: 
 
Due to the specific climate condition in Montenegro, especially near the sea coast, the End 
User requirements include the specification for the mentioned 2x500W Transmitters and the 
Transmitters  with 1KW Nominal Outgoing Power and above to be offered with a liquid 
cooling  technology. However, under these clarifications, it is allowed that offered 
Transmitters 500W Nominal Outgoing Power may have Air cooled based solution. 
 
QUESTION 45:  
 
"The Tenderer shall during the last 5 years, ending on the date of the deadline for submission 
of tenders, have completed at least 1 (one) project with a value equal or greater than his 
financial bid and involving activities such as delivery, installation and maintenance of 
equipment similar to the one tendered for. 
 
Please clarify meaning of FINANCIAL BID 
• Is it 10% of total value of offer as we suppose, or Total value of offer?" 
 
ANSWER 45: 
 
Financial bid means the total value of offer. 
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QUESTION 46:  
 
"Date of tenders 
 
As offers will be in public in Serbia just 4 days before opening it in Montenegro, and all 
tenderers will be almost the same with very equal products, it means that all prices will be 
known before deadline in Montenegro. 
 
We suggest merging opening for both tenders at the same day, to keep fair play or tender." 
 
ANSWER 46: 
 
The tender process in Montenegro is not connected with the tender process in Serbia in any 
way. The Contracting Authority in Montenegro cannot advance the date of the opening 
published for this tender. 
 
QUESTION 47:  
 
"IMPLEMENTATION of network 
 
It is not mentioned what are the steps in implementation 
 
Which sites will be installed first, and what is order of installing in general?" 
 
ANSWER 47: 
 
The successful bidder will make a plan of delivery/installation together with End User to be 
approved by the Contracting Authority in accordance with prevailing weather and 
environmental conditions during the delivery/installation. 
 
QUESTION 48:  
 
"In Tender instruction, 10.4 is asked to be written ON ENVELOPE: 
 
e) the name of the tenderer 
 
It is not in accordance with general condition. Should be written IN ENVELOPE 
 
Do we have to write name of tenderer on, or IN envelope?" 
 
ANSWER 48: 
 
There is no mistake in 10.4 of the ITT and the name of tenderer must be written on the 
envelope, there is not and cannot be any contradiction with any general conditions. 
 
QUESTION 49:  
 
"Nominal outgoing Power stated in the offer should represent the power measured after the 
band pass filter. 
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Comment: As we have 40 locations with diplexers, it is wasting of money to have extra band 
pass filter built in transmitter. 

a) Is it required to have an extra band pass filter in transmitter or duplexer is acceptable?  
b) If no, is it acceptable to measure power in transmitter, before diplexer?  
c) Are filters critical mask, or non critical mask?" 

 
ANSWER 49: 
 

a) and b) It is required an extra band pass filter as an integrated part in the Transmitters. 
b) The output power of transmitter must be measured on the output of band pass filter in 

transmitter 
c) The Band pass filters are with non critical mask type, except for sites Obrov and Volujica 
where the Transmitters with critical spectrum mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 50:  
 
"Total power in diplexer is not clear. Sample: 
TV Duplexer for site named ”Lustica” DVB-T input - Channel (UHF IV)-35,  
connector 7/16” female  (500W) 
Analogue channel input  (UHF IV/V) 
connector  type 7/8”  flange (2000W) 
Duplexer power capacity  up to 2500W                                     
Quantity: 1 
Comment: Summary of diplexer power looks like summary of two analogue power, not DVB-
T(RMS). 

a) What is total power capacity in diplexers? 
b) If required to have BPF in transmitter, before diplexer, are diplexer filters with critical, 

or non critical mask?" 
 
ANSWER 50: 
 
a) The Power inputs in Duplexer are expressed as a RMS value. The Diplexers have to be 
with clearly defined breakdown voltage value. 
b) Yes, we required band pass filter in transmitter before diplexer. The band pass filter in 
transmitter is required without critical mask, except for sites Obrov and Volujica where the 
critical mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 51:  
 
"Transmitter shall be offered as a dual drive configuration. 
Is it active or passive configuration of dual drive?" 
 
ANSWER 51: 
 
Transmitters should be offered as a passive configuration of dual drive. 
 
QUESTION 52:  
 
"On location Herceg Novi Lustica (Nominal Power 500 W) you insist for cooling liquid? 
Comment: Too small power for more expensive LC system 
Is it correct?" 
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ANSWER 52: 
 
Due to the specific climate condition in Montenegro, especially near the sea coast, the End 
User requirements include the specification for the mentioned 2x500W Transmitters and the 
Transmitters  with 1KW Nominal Outgoing Power and above to be offered with a liquid 
cooling  technology. However, under these clarifications, it is allowed that offered 
Transmitters 500W Nominal Outgoing Power may have Air cooled based solution. 
 
QUESTION 53:  
 
"IP to ASI Adapter 
- IP to ASI de-encapsulation. 
- Electrical GbE Input (connector  RJ-45), IPv4, RTP/UDP, IGMPv2 support. 
- ASI Output port (compliant with DVB-T Transmitter ASI input). 
- Web-based Management (interface Ethernet 10/100 Base-T on RJ-45 Connector). 
- SNMP remote monitoring. 
- Input Voltage 200 – 240Vac, EU Power Cord.                    Quantity: 40 
Comment: These adapters are needed to interface IP from existing SDH network to ASI in 
transmitters 
Can it be included in transmitter? It means to have IP input directly in transmitter?" 
 
ANSWER 53: 
 
The IP to ASI converters have to be independent devices apart from the Transmitters. 
 
QUESTION 54:  
 
"DVB-T2 upgradeable 
Comment: Upgradeable is to wide definition. 
What do you mean by UPGRADEABLE?" 
 
ANSWER 54: 
 
Upgradable means that the upgrade from DVB-T to DVB-T2 must be possible simply by 
uploading the new software and, if necessary, with the minimum additional hardware to be 
plugged into existing hardware and performing this upgrade on site (without sending the 
equipment back to factory).  
 
QUESTION 55:  
 
"In tender conditions According to the Montenegrin and International Standards (IEC 60038) 
all equipment should be supplied to work in the range of the power supply nominal voltage of 
AC 230 V (± 10%), 50/60 Hz. 
  
 In specifications for equipments  
- The transmitter should be able to operate normally on a AC variation  +/- 15 %. 
 
What is correct value?" 
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ANSWER 55: 
 
The Transmitters should be able to operate normally on AC variation +/- 15%. 
 
QUESTION 56:  
 
"Nominal power of transmitters 
Is nominal power of transmitter given in DVB-T (RMS)?" 
 
ANSWER 56: 
 
The outgoing nominal power is RMS value. 
 
QUESTION 57: 
 
"Request for clarification on Annex II and Annex II I Technical specifications. 
 
First Page Last two lines. 
Please confirm that all equipment items must be delivered, installed, configured and fully 
tested in situ at designated places. 
If confirmed it means that transportation as well as installation, commissioning and out-on air 
services of all stations are to be quoted." 
 
ANSWER 57: 
 
Quotation of transportation is not required. The delivery site is DDP Podgorica, more 
specifically ST Predajnik Gornja Plavnica, Golubovci bb, Podgorica, Montenegro - the warehouse 
of the end user (RDC), which will be the only delivery site. The End User (RDC) will 
transport delivered equipment (properly labelled) from Podgorica to the each broadcasting site 
of each Allotment Zone and Sub Allotment Zone. The End User will assist the supplier in the 
installation process of the equipment on the site (connecting the devices -cabling). The 
installation of transmitters with liquid cooling will be performed by supplier with necessary 
assistance by End User. The supplier will provide at least 1 (one) qualified engineer for the 
installation process to provide instructions and necessary demonstration of the proper 
installation of equipment and to supervise the whole process at each site. 
 
QUESTION 58: 
 
"Request for clarification on Annex II and Annex II I Technical specifications. 
Second page point f) 
It is stated  
Power efficiency of each transmitter (without power consumption of liquid cooling system) 
must be minimum 95%. 
Please confirm 
We believe that this percentage is unrealistic. Normally the power efficiency defined as the 
ratio (%) between the forward RF output power (W) and the total power consumption of the 
transmitter from the prime power line is about 20% for medium/high power transmitter. For 
lower power transmitters the efficiency is even lower." 
 
ANSWER 58: 
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The Power efficiency must be minimum 95%, which means installation of Active Power 
Corrector as an integrated part of the Transmitters that would provide for the required lower 
power consumption. 
 
QUESTION 59: 
 
"Transmitter cooling system 
For all transmitters with output power level of 5KW, 1KW and 500W is requested a liquid 
cooling system. It is requested a total of 3 500W transmitters. 2 500W are requested with 
liquid cooling and 1 with air cooling (Dormitor station). It appears strange that the cooling 
system for this power level is not on the same for all the 3 transmitters. Furthermore for this 
power level usually is used an air cooling system and not a liquid cooling system. 
 
Please confirm the cooling system for the 3 500W transmitters 
Please also confirm if it is possible to quote air cooling system for all the 3 500W 
transmitters" 
 
ANSWER 59: 
 
Due to the specific climate condition in Montenegro, especially near the sea coast, the End 
User requirements include the specification for the mentioned 2x500W Transmitters and the 
Transmitters  with 1KW Nominal Outgoing Power and above to be offered with a liquid 
cooling  technology. However, under these clarifications, it is allowed that offered 
Transmitters 500W Nominal Outgoing Power may have Air cooled based solution. 
 
QUESTION 60: 
 
"For all transmitters is requested a cooling system with double pump (liquid cooling) and 
double blower (air cooling). 
It is a standard configuration to provide medium/high power transmitter with redundant 
cooling system (liquid or air) while for low power such as 10W up to 50W as in the request of 
this tender, the transmitter is realized in one single 19" drawer and it is normally provided 
with only one blower.  
It is acceptable or is it mandatory even for low power transmitter the use of a double blower?" 
 
ANSWER 60: 
 
It is in the Bidder's discretion to choose the solution for cooling. The number of blowers 
depends on way the device is constructed. It does not affect the space in height any more than 
the ordinary production. 
 
QUESTION 61: 
 
"Equipment rack. 
In the technical specification there is no specific requirement as far as it concerns the 
transmitters housing.  
For transmitter having power level from 100W up to 5KW it is normally provided a 19" rack 
cabinet that contains the several unit composing the whole transmitter (double exciter, one or 
more RF power amplifier, control unit, output filter). 
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For low power transmitter from 10W up to 50W, due to the low power, the transmitter is 
realized in one single 19" drawer plus an output filter. The question: the low power 
transmitters are requested to be contained in a 19" rack cabinet? 
And if the cabinet is requested what is the size (height) of the rack cabinet?" 
 
ANSWER 61: 
 
Yes, the low power transmitters are requested to be contained in a 19" rack cabinet. The size 
(height) of the rack cabinet depends of size of devices installed into it. What is requested, on 
the other hand, is higher number of (smaller dimensions) emitting devices.  
 
QUESTION 62: 
 
"Duplexer.  
a) For all duplexers it is no specified the analogue input channel (it is only specified the 
frequency band UHF IV/V) the question is: the spacing between DVB-T channel input and 
the analogue channel input is minimum one channel or there are stations where the DVB-T 
channel and the analogue are adjacent channel?  
b) Some duplexer appears to have a wrong output power handling particularly the following 
stations: 
1. Spas. The DVB-T input power specified is 100W and the analogue input power specified is 
600W. The power capacity specified is 2500W. It appears to be too high 
2. Kacuber. The DVB-T input power specified is 100W and the analogue input power 
specified is 20W. The power capacity specified is 50W. IT appears to be too low 
3. Bja. Virpazar. The DVB-T input power specified is 100W and the analogue input power 
specified is 300W. The power capacity specified is 150W. It appears to be too low.  
Please specify" 
 
ANSWER 62: 
 
The spacing between analogue channel input and DVB-T channel input in the Diplexer is 
minimum one UHF channel. 
 
1.  The comment is correct. There was a typing & printing error. The capacity Power of the 
Diplexer should be up to 800W 
2.  The comment is correct. There was a typing & printing error, the power of transmitter is 
actually 10W. The capacity Power of the Diplexer should be up to 50W. 
3.  The comment is correct. There was a typing & printing error. The capacity Power of the 
Diplexer should be up to 500W. 
 
QUESTION 63:  
 
Request for clarification on Instruction to Tenderers 
 
"1. At point 1.1 it says: 
 
The equipment shall be delivered and installed into the respective places of delivery and 
installation specified for each item in the technical specification, or ST Predajnik Gornja 
Plavnica, Golubovci bb, Podgorica, Montenegro for the items for which the places of ultimate 
delivery and installation have not been identified in the technical specification. The detailed 
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addresses will be communicated to the successful bidder by the Contracting Authority within 
one month from contract signature.  
For the calculation of the cost of transportation it is important to know the place where the 
equipment have to be delivered. If the places are going to be confirmed after the contract 
signature it is not possible to accurately defined the cost of transportation. 
Please clarify." 
 
ANSWER 63: 
 
The delivery site is DDP Podgorica, more specifically ST Predajnik Gornja Plavnica, Golubovci 
bb, Podgorica, Montenegro - the warehouse of the End User (RDC), which will be the only 
delivery site. The End User (RDC) will transport delivered equipment (properly labelled) 
from Podgorica to the each broadcasting site of each Allotment Zone and Sub Allotment 
Zone. The End User will assist the supplier in the installation process of the equipment on the 
site (connecting the devices -cabling). The installation of transmitters with liquid cooling will 
be performed by supplier with necessary assistance by End User. The supplier will provide at 
least 1 (one) qualified engineer for the installation process to provide instructions and 
necessary demonstration of the proper installation of equipment and to supervise the whole 
process at each site. 
 
QUESTION 64: 
 
"Please clarify the difference in value of tender guarantee that arise between documents. 
According to A. Instructions to tenderers/11 Content of tenders/Part 3: Documentation on 
page 6 and to Supply procurement notice/11 tender guarantee on page 2 the Tender guarantee 
for 30,000 EUR is requested. On the other hand, in A. Instructions to tenderers/22 Tender 
guarantee on page 11, tender guarantee is set at 32,000 EUR." 
 
ANSWER 64: 
 
The amount in the Article 22 of the Instructions to Tenderers is a typing mistake. Therefore, 
the amount of the tender guarantee is 30,000€, as specified in the Procurement Notice. 
 
QUESTION 65: 
 
"Please precise the statement in document ANNEX II+III: Technical Specifications + 
Technical Offer 
Service Requirements: Manufacturer authorized local service support to Montenegro.  
Has the manufacturers authorized local service support in Montenegro be present at the 
moment of the submitting the tender or has to be present at the moment of signing the 
contract?" 
 
ANSWER 65: 
 
We are clarifying that it is not a requirement that manufacturer has authorized local service 
support or representation in Montenegro. However, as specified in the Technical Specification 
the supplier is obliged to respond within 3 working days from the official notice (mailed or faxed) by 
the beneficiary (End User). The latter means that within three working days from receipt of the End 
User's notification of a defect or item breakdown, the Supplier will have to remedy the problem or 
provide temporary replacement equipment, while the supplies are being serviced or repaired by the 
Supplier.  
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QUESTION 66: 
 
"Please precise the statement in document ANNEX II+III: Technical Specifications + 
technical Offer  
f) Power efficiency of each transmitter (Without power consumption of liquid cooling system) 
must be minimum 95% 
We presume that figure relays to power factor. For power efficiency is value below that 
figure." 
 
ANSWER 66: 
 
The presumption is correct; the figure corresponds to an Active Power Factor device as an 
integrated part of Transmitters. By Power efficiency 95% is meant adjusted active Power 
Factor Correction.  
 
QUESTION 67: 
 
"Request for clarification on Annex II Annex III Te chnical specifications. 
 
Under the heading Tender dossier requirement at third point it is written:  
Tenderers must include in their offers authorizations from the respective manufacturers for 
the delivery, installation and warranty maintenance of the offered supplies.  
 
Question:  
Being the major part of the supply composed by transmitters of which our company is the 
manufacturer is it necessary to have such a declaration from the manufacturer of the diplexers, 
software for remote control, IP to ASI adapter, MPEG Transport stream Multiplexer, MPEG-
4 encoder and Antenna parts (Connectors and cables) which are normally considered 
accessories?" 
 
ANSWER 67: 
 
Yes, such declarations from the manufacturers of the "accessories" are necessary to submit. 
 
QUESTION 68: 
 
"At point e) of General Requirement of the technical specifications it is stated:  
The supplier is obliged to provide training for 5 (five) persons from beneficiary in the 
production area for a period of 4 (four) working days. The days of factory acceptance are not 
to be considered as training days. All the costs for training, for example, printed materials, 
brochures and other learning tools (including an accommodation and travel costs for trainers) 
are to be covered by the suppliers.  
 
The number of days for factory acceptance are not specified.  
 
The question is: Should we evaluate how many days?  
In the above point it is not specified if the expenses for factory acceptance should be as well 
covered by the supplier.  
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Please specify" 
 
ANSWER 68: 
 
Factory acceptance tests will be performed for DVB-T transmitters, gap fillers, encoders and 
TS multiplexer, which will take at least 15 working days depending of schedule of delivery. 
As noted in other answers of these clarifications delivery/installation schedule will be agreed 
between supplier and End User. The expenses of factory acceptance will be covered by 
supplier including accommodation for 5 employees of End User.  
End User will cover travel expenses and other costs of its staff. Final arrangements for factory 
acceptance will be agreed by supplier and End User.  
 
QUESTION 69: 
 
"At Item n. 88 Antennae part are requested among other items the following:  
Connector N(m) for cable 1/2" Quantity : 110 pieces 
Connector 7/16" (m) for cable 7/8" Quantity : 35 pieces  
Connector 7/8" EIA flange cable 7/8" Quantity : 5 pieces 
Cable 1/2" Quantity : 300m 
Cable 7/8" Quantity : 100m 
The question is:  
1. What type of 1/2" Cable is requested (Air dielectric or foam dielectric) 
2. What type of 7/8" Cable is requested (Air dielectric or foam dielectric) 
 
We assume that all type of connectors requested will be used for the type of cable that will be 
specified (air dielectric or foam dielectric).  
 
Please specify the type of cable and if the connectors are meant for the use with specified type 
of cable." 
 
ANSWER 69: 
 

1. For the RF cable 1/2” a foam dielectric type is required. 
2. For the RF cable 7/8” a foam dielectric type is required. 
3. Yes, the connectors are meant for the use with specified type of cable. 

 
QUESTION 70: 
 
"Tender guarantee form 
In the text of the tender guarantee form it is written: 
…………. 
We note that the guarantee will be released at the latest within 45 days of the expiry of the 
tender validity period, including any extensions, in accordance with Article 8 of the 
Instructions to Tenderers [and in any case at the latest on 1) year after the deadline for 
submission of tenders)]. 
The law applicable to this guarantee shall be that of <enter Belgium, or the name of the 
country of the Contracting Authority if this is not the European Commission / country in 
which the financial institution issuing the guarantee is established>. Any dispute arising out of 
or in connection with this guarantee shall be referred to the courts of <enter Belgium, or the 
name of the country of the Contracting Authority if this is not the European Commission>. 
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The question is:  
For how long should the tender guarantee be valid? 90 days +45 days or at the latest 1 year 
after the deadline for submission of tenders?  
A note on this point says:  
This mention has to be inserted only where required, for example where the law applicable to 
the guarantee imposes a precise expiry date 
 
Furthermore it is not clear to us the law applicable to this guarantee, the law of Belgium or, in 
our, the law of Italy?" 
 
ANSWER 70: 
 
The tender guarantee must remain valid for at least 90+40+60+45 (i.e. 235) days after the 
deadline for submission of tenders. (40 is the possible standard extension of the duration of 
the offers' validity, 60 days is the duration of the automatic additional extension of the validity 
of the offer of the successful tenderer). 
 
The choice of the applicable law is left to the discretion of the financial institution issuing the 
bank guarantee. 
 
QUESTION 71: 
 
"In general requirements of the Technical Specifications you request power efficiency of each 
transmitter must be minimum 95%. What is the real power efficiency?" 
  
ANSWER 71: 
 
The figure depicts an Active Power Corrector which should be an integrated part of the 
Transmitter. By Power efficiency 95% is meant adjusted active Power Factor Correction. 
 
QUESTION 72: 
 
"In general requirements you request nominal voltage of AC 230 V (+/- 10%) but in 
specification requested nominal voltage variation is +/- 15%. Which is correct?" 
 
ANSWER 72: 
 
Because of the uncorrected situation in the Power Supply system in Montenegro, the End 
User is requesting equipment that is capable to provide good response even in the 15% (and 
above) variation of the AC supply. 
 
QUESTION 73: 
 
"In general requirements stay that manufacturer authorized local service support in 
Montenegro. We think that it is too restrictive because if manufacturer is tenderer or a partner 
in a consortium there is no need that local service is authorized. Manufacturer oneself or 
leading company in consortium could provide the best service and support." 
 
ANSWER 73: 
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We are clarifying that it is not a requirement that manufacturer has authorized local service 
support or representation in Montenegro. However, as specified in the Technical Specification 
the supplier is obliged to respond within 3 working days from the official notice (mailed or faxed) by 
the beneficiary (End User). The latter means that within three working days from receipt of the End 
User's notification of a defect or item breakdown, the Supplier will have to remedy the problem or 
provide temporary replacement equipment, while the supplies are being serviced or repaired by the 
Supplier.  
  
QUESTION 74: 
 
"In technical specification under point 44 software is request. Do we have to provide 
certificate of origin for software?" 
 
ANSWER 74: 
 
The bidder is expected to provide the certificate of origin for the software. More concretely, 
he is expected to provide not only the country of origin in the EU certificate, but also a 
statement of guarantee that he will provide should the End User request for an upgrade later 
on. 
 
QUESTION 75: 
 
"Under point 86 of technical specification required are 40 peaces IP to ASI adapter. Could 
they be included in transmitter?" 
 
ANSWER 75: 
 
The IP to ASI Converters are required with an intention of separating it from the transmitters 
due to the type (open) of the Broadcasting Network and in taking into consideration the future 
MUXs. 
 
QUESTION 76:  
 
"Under point 87 you request only one Multiplexer. We would strongly recommend using 1+1 
Multiplexer setup due to high availably which is always expected for TV service. If only one 
MUX is used and if this MUX goes down you will lose entire DVB-T multiplex i.e. all 
channels. Replacing a faulty MUX with new MUX is not trivial and could mean long down-
time with no available channels country wide if no spare or redundant equipment is present."  
 
ANSWER 76: 
 
The Bidder is free to offer one active and one stand by MUX as a system. 
 
QUESTION 77:  
 
"You also request web-based Management. Multiplexer is device which is not configured in 
daily basis and also configuration must be very precise and therefore nCompass Control must 
be used. nCC gives full configuration capabilities and much more. It will provide alarming, 
automatic switching in case of redundancy; it will find all Ericsson devices in the network and 
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much more. Configuration of the MUX via nCC is the right way to have controlled and 
monitored HE" 
 
ANSWER 77:  
 
Web-based management is preferable but the bidder is free to offer proprietary management 
software. The rationale behind the requested type of Multiplexer is the type of the Digital 
Distribution Network. The Bidder can offer a type of Multiplexer that provides the required 
performance for the statistical multiplexing, SPTS&MTPS support and has all others 
characteristic named in the specification. 
 
QUESTION 78: 
 
"Under point 88 you request MPEG-4 Encoder, 2 peaces. Are you sure that is enough 
quantities?" 
 
ANSWER 78:  
 
Yes. We confirm that for this phase two encoders are requested since the Montenegro Public 
Enterprise is producing only 2 (two) National programs. 
 
QUESTION 79: 
 
"Under point 88 you required are antennae parts. Do we have to provide certificate of origin 
for this parts?" 
 
ANSWER 79: 
 
Yes, the Bidder is obliged to provide certificates of origin for all equipment he is offering. 
 
QUESTION 80: 
 
Item 86 (page 105 of 107) 
IP to ASI Adapter  
- IP to ASI de-encapsulation. 
- Electrical GbE input (connector RJ-45), IPv4, RTP/UDP, IGMPv2 support. 
- ASI output port (compliant with DVB-T Transmitter ASI input).  
Web-based Management (interface Ethernet 10/100 Base-T on RJ-45 connector).  
- SNMP remote monitoring. 
- Input voltage 200 – 240Vac 
EU Power Cord. Quantity: 40. 
 
Question 1: is dual power supply required to enhance the service resiliency?  
 
Question 2: is the IP network 100% impairment free? If not then SMPTE 2022-1 FEC would 
be required.  
 
Question 3: in a case of lost and not recoverable IP packets then the SFN megaframes are 
corrupted. Replacing lost packets by stuffing packets can avoid the modulator to 
resynchronize. Is it a feature that would be required?  
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Question 4: is it planned to have a backup feed (over IP or satellite)? In this case 2 IP feeds or 
1 IP feed + 1 ASI feed would be required if the IP to ASI adaptor.  
 
ANSWER 80: 
 
Answer on Question No 1 (Item 86) 

o The Bidder is free to offer the dual Power supply for enhancement of device 
resiliency, however it is not a requirement. 

Answer on Question No 2 (Item 86) 
 

o The IP Network in not impairment free. The Bidder is free to offer a SMPTE 2022-1 
FEC feature. 

Answer on Question No 3 (Item 86) 
 

o No, it is not a requirement. The Bidder is free to offer any features for recovery in the 
case of lost and not revocable IP packets. The Bidder is also free to offer any features 
that would prevent the re-synchronizing of the modulators. 

Answer on Question No 4 (Item 86) 
 

o A back-up feed over satellite is not planned. Therefore, 2 IP feeds or 1 IP feed + 1 ASI 
feed is not a requirement.  

 
QUESTION 81: 
 
Item 87 (page 105 of 107) 
 
MPEG TS Multiplexer  
- Capability of combining multiple incoming transport streams (MPEG over IP) into a single 
transport stream (MPEG over IP) suitable for DVB-T SFN broadcast.  
- Gigabit Ethernet inputs and outputs. 
- SPTS & MPTS support.  
- Unicast and Multicast support. 
- Web-based Management (interface Ethernet 10/100 Base-T on RJ-45 Connector). 
- MIP insertion. 
- Statistical multiplexing. 
- Transport Stream Processing (re-multiplexing of services, PID filtering/remapping 
capability, built-in PSI viewer, PSI regeneration, bit rate measurement of incoming service, 
error monitoring.  
- input Voltage 200 – 240Vac, EU Power Cord Quantity: 1 
 
Question 1: is dual power supply required to enhance the service resiliency?  
 
Question 2: is it required to support the control of remote encoders? If yes will round trip 
delay be > 300 ms? 
 
Question 3: MIP insertion is required, but not DVB-T2. Is it required to support software 
upgrade to DVB-T2 adaptation inside the multiplexer? 
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Question 4: is it planned to perform scrambling in the future to support Pay TV – then 
required to have this software upgrade the multiplexer? 
 
Question 5: is it planned to support live to live switch in the compressed domain (e.g. for 
regional switch over) – then required to have the capacity to upgrade the multiplexer to this 
digital program insertion capacity?   
 
ANSWER 81: 
 
Answer on Question No 1 (Item 87) 

o The Bidder is free to offer the dual Power supply for enhancement of the device 
resiliency but it is not a requirement. 

 
Answer on Question No 2 (Item 87) 

o The support of the control of the remote encoders is not required in this Phase. 
 
Answer on Question No 3 (Item 87) 

o The MIP insertion is required for software upgrade to DVB-T2 adaptation inside the 
Multiplexer. 

 
Answer on Question No 4 (Item 87) 

o The scrambling is not planned. This is the digitalisation of National Programs Phase. 
 
Answer on Question No 5 (Item 87) 

o No, live to live switch in the compressed domain is not predicted. No regional switch 
over in this Phase is required. 

 
QUESTION 82: 
 
Item 88 (page 106 of 107)  
 
MPEG-4 Encoder 
- MPEG-4 4:2:0 MP@L3 (MPEG-4 AVC/H.264) video encoding. 
- Composite and SDI video inputs.  
- Analog (balanced), digital and embedded audio inputs, 4 audio channels (2 stereo pairs). 
- VBI (Teletext B etc.) support. 
- ASI and IP outputs. 
- Web-based management. 
- Statmux interface. 
- Input Voltage 200 – 240 Vac, EU Power Cord Quantity: 2 
 
Question 1: MP@L3 is required but not H264 MPEG4 AVC HP@L3 high profile video 
encoding, which lead to better efficiency of the encoder. Is it an encoding profile that you 
request for? 
 
Question 2: is it planned to encode streams already encoded (satellite feeds, turn around)? In 
this case IP input with internal decoding capability would be required.  
 
Question 3: what is the audio codec to provide? MPEG-1 layer 2? AAC? LC-AAC/ HE-
AAC/HE-AAC v2 encoding? Dolby Digital (AC3) 2.0 stereo encoding?  
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Question 4: is there plan to increase the number of stereo audio in the future from 2 to 4? 6? 
8? 
 
Question 5: is it planned to receive Teletext in the SDI and transcode it into DVB Subtitle?  
 
Question 6: is it planned to perform logo insertion on the video channels?  
 
ANSWER 82: 
 
Answer on Question No 1 (Item 88) 

o Yes, for higher efficiency of the encoder, a MPEG4 AVC HP@L3 high profile video 
encoding is required. The bidder is free to offer HP@L3 upgrade via software 
licensing. 

 
Answer on Question No 2 (Item 88) 

o No, the encoding of the satellite feeds or turning of the streams is not planned. Thus 
there is no need for an IP input with internal decoding capability. 

 
Answer on Question No 3 (Item 88) 

o AAC and HE-AAC is required for audio coding.  
 
Answer on Question No 4 (Item 88) 

o Yes, it is planned in the future an increasing in the number of stereos audio inputs. 
 
Answer on Question No 5 (Item 88) 

o Yes, the receipt of the Teletext in SDI is predicted. Therefore a trans-coding in DVB 
Subtitle will be necessary. 

 
Answer on Question No 6 (Item 88) 

o Yes, a logo insertion on the video channels is planned. 
 
QUESTION 83: 
 
"Regarding the installation and commissioning, should it be included for all transmitters?" 
 
ANSWER 83: 
 
The End User (RDC) will transport delivered equipment (properly labelled) from Podgorica 
to the each broadcasting site of each Allotment Zone and Sub Allotment Zone. The End User 
will assist the supplier in the installation process of the equipment on the site (connecting the 
devices -cabling). The installation of transmitters with liquid cooling will be performed by 
supplier with necessary assistance by End User. The supplier will provide at least 1 (one) 
qualified engineer for the installation and commissioning process to provide instructions and 
necessary demonstration of the proper installation of equipment and to supervise the whole 
process at each site.  
 
QUESTION 84: 
 
"Since the GPS is not mentioned - is it necessary to integrate a GPS receiver?" 
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ANSWER 84: 
 
Since the three Single Frequency Network types are already decided for to cover the territory 
of Montenegro with the DVB-T signal, it is necessary that the professional GPS receiver is 
integrated with the Transmitters for a 10 MHz reference signal and a 1pps time signal 
producing. 
 
QUESTION 85: 
 
"Are FAT and training required also for Encoders and Multiplexer, and Diplexers?" 
 
ANSWER 85: 
 
FAT and training are required for Encoders and TS Multiplexer, not for diplexers. 
 
QUESTION 86: 
 
"Is it allowed to offer air cooled transmitters for powers less than 1000W?" 
 
ANSWER 86: 
 
Yes, it is allowed to offer air cooling system for transmitters with Nominal Outgoing Power 
less than 1000W. 
 
QUESTION 87: 
 
"With reference to Article 18 of the "Supply Procurement Notice" please find below our 
request for clarifications concerning "Legal Entities Form" It is written in this document that: 
"A COPY OF SOME OFFICIAL DOCUMENT (OFFICIAL GAZETTE, COMPANY 
REGISTER ETC) SHOWING THE NAME OF THE LEGAL ENTITY, THE ADDRESS OF 
THE HEAD OFFICE AND THE REGISTRATION NUMBER GIVEN TO IT BY THE 
NATIONAL AUTHORITIES." Document of Legal entity such as Chamber of Commerce is 
in language of EU supplier's country e.g. French, Italian or German. 
 
We understand that because this is EU language, document will be accepted. Please confirm?" 
 
ANSWER 87: 
 
Yes, it will be accepted. However, tenderers are strongly encouraged to provide translations 
into English together with such documents. Moreover, the Evaluation Committee will have 
the right to request translations into English of any parts of the offers during the process of 
evaluating the tenders. 
 
QUESTION 88: 
 
"With reference to Article 18 of the "Supply Procurement Notice" please find below our 
request for clarifications: Montenegro is a very mountainous country and most of the 
transmitting sites are inaccessible most of the time of the year. For some of the locations there 
are no access roads at all. As per Art 13 from Supply Procurement Notice, no site visit is 
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planned, therefore we must ask and clarify following important issues for seriousness of our 
offer:  
 
1) Please clarify whether access roads will be available for all sites?" 
  
ANSWER 88: 
 
The End User is responsible for the transportation of equipment and people. The noted date of 
delivery is adjusted with the time when the access road is available. 
 
QUESTION 89: 
 
"If access roads will not be available,  
> will contractor be authorized to wait until civil works for access roads be finished without 
any penalties for the contractor?  
> will contracting authority shall pay for relevant provisional storage?" 
 
ANSWER 89: 
 
The Contractor is not expected to wait for any ongoing work on the roads that prevents the 
access to the broadcasting site. The delivery point is DDP, Podgorica, the warehouse of the 
End User. The End User is additionally responsible for the immediate transportation of the 
equipment that is properly labelled to the specific broadcasting site. The Contacting Authority 
is not expected to bear the costs of any additional storage of the equipment. 
 
QUESTION 90: 
 
"We understand access road civil works costs are not part of contractor's price and 
responsibility. Please confirm?" 
 
ANSWER 90: 
 
The ongoing works on the access road are not of a concern to the Contractor and such costs 
will not be a part of contractor's price and responsibility.  
 
QUESTION 91: 
 
"Please clarify whether access roads will support truck for equipment delivery? In case of 
weight limitation, please kindly inform us."  
 
ANSWER 91: 
 
The transportation of the equipment is a responsibility of the End User. 
 
QUESTION 92: 
 
"It is assumed that the sites including the buildings will be fully prepared (such as but not 
limited to: enough space, clean room, energy available, earthing correct and available) prior to 
receive the equipment delivered in the frame of the contract. Please confirm?" 
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ANSWER 92: 
 
The broadcasting sites are fully prepared to receive the new equipment where it should be 
installed. For that purposes, there is sufficient clear space on the sites, they are provided with 
the power AC supply-energy available, and they have an adequate earthing device since there 
is other equipment installed on the site. 
 
QUESTION 93: 

 
"Under Title/Item Number 89; Description: Antennae Parts; Technical Specifications 
required: Connector N(m) for cable 1/2’’ Quantity: 110 pieces; Connector 7/16’’ (m) for cable 
7/8’’ Quantity: 35 pieces; Connector 7/8’’ EIA flange for cable 7/8’’ Quantity: 5 pieces; 
Cable 1/2’’ Quantity: 300m; Cable 7/8” Quantity: 100m; Rigid line HF 1 5/8” Quantity: 30m 
Band for rigid line GF 1 5/8” Quantity: 16 pieces; Connection accessories for rigid line 1 5/8” 
Quantity: 8 pieces. 
Our request for clarifications: 
Should the support structure, like masts and towers be included in the offer?" 
 
ANSWER 93: 
 
The offer of supporting structure (masts and towers) is not required. 
 
QUESTION 94: 
 
"Please clarify if transmitter offer shall include inbuild GPS receiver and GPS antenna." 
 
ANSWER 94: 
 
GPS receiver and a GPS antenna will be the integrated parts in the Transmitters. 
 
QUESTION 95: 
 
"Please clarify if the mask filter shall be critical or non-critical filters. Does the answer apply 
to all sites (incl. Gap-filler sites)? If not, could you please give statement per site!" 
 
ANSWER 95: 
 
The Band Pass Filters should be designed with a non-critical mask, except for sites Volujica 
and Obrov where the filter with critical mask is required. This answer applies for all 
broadcasting sites. 
 
QUESTION 96: 
 
"All transmitter/Gap-filler to be indoor or outdoor rack/shelter? If answer does not apply to all 
sits, we need statement per site!" 
 
ANSWER 96: 
 
All Transmitters shall be in indoor racks/shelters. Only one (out of three) Gap Filler for site 
named Petnjica ,is an outdoor installation (item No 43). 
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QUESTION 97: 
 
"Please clarify if the transmitters that do not explicitly ask for dual drive, be single drive e.g. 
Item #1 is dual drive, Item #5 is single drive?" 
 
ANSWER 97: 
 
The dual drive configuration is recommended for the Transmitters with Nominal Outgoing 
Power of 250W and above. 
 
QUESTION 98: 
 
"Please clarify if the analogue and digital channels are adjacent channels." 
 
ANSWER 98: 
 
The wideband UHF analogue channels and the digital channels are not adjacent channels, 
except for sites Volujica and Obrov where the filter with critical mask is required. 
 
QUESTION 99: 
 
"Please clarify if the wideband input of the duplexer shall be used." 
  
ANSWER 99: 
 
Yes. The analogue input into the Diplexer should be a wideband input. 
 
QUESTION 100: 
 
"Please clarify the preferred channel (analogue or digital) for the wideband input." 
 
ANSWER 100: 
 
There is no preferred channel. The analogue input into the Diplexer should be a wideband 
input. 
 
QUESTION 101: 
 
"Please clarify if the wideband input need to be filtered and if the filter shall be part of the 
duplexer." 
 
ANSWER 101: 
 
The wideband input is necessary to be filtered 
 
QUESTION 102: 
 
"Please specify the type of output connector." 
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ANSWER 102: 
 
The types of the connectors are named on each cable and input according the Power. 
 
QUESTION 103: 
 
"Please specify if directional couplers are requested at the inputs." 
 
ANSWER 103: 
 
They are not requested. 
 
QUESTION 104: 
 
"Please specify if directional couplers are requested at the output." 
 
ANSWER 104: 
 
They are not requested. 
 
QUESTION 105: 
 
"Please clarify if the 2 encoders can be offered in one HW platform." 
 
ANSWER 105: 
 
Yes, 2 Encoders can be offered in one HW platform. 
 
QUESTION 106: 
 
"Please clarify how many Encoders are HD and SD." 
 
ANSWER 106: 
 
The total number of requested Encoders is 2 (two). Both encoders are SD. 
 
QUESTION 107: 
 
"Please clarify if audio pairs need to be converted from analogue to digital." 
 
ANSWER 107: 
 
Yes, audio pairs should be converted to digital. Encoders must have analogue balanced audio inputs.  
 
QUESTION 108: 
 
"Please clarify if redundancy is needed." 
 
ANSWER 108: 
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The redundancy for Headend is not required in this Phase. Nevertheless, the system should be 
upgradable for the future. 
 
QUESTION 109: 
 
"Tender Guarantee: in the Instructions to Tender, Chapter 11 the amount of the Tender 
Guarantee is stated with 30.000 EUR, whereas in Chapter 22 the Tender Guarantee amount is 
stated with 32.000 EUR. Could you please confirm the correct amount." 
 
ANSWER 109: 
 
The amount in the Article 22 of the Instructions to Tenderers is a typing mistake. Therefore, 
the amount of the tender guarantee is 30,000€, as specified in the Procurement Notice. 
 
QUESTION 110: 
 
"Warranty Period: in Annex II + III Technical Specifications is stated that all equipment items 
must carry a minimum 1 year full warranty, whereas in the Special Conditions Article 32 is 
stated that the Warranty Period shall remain valid for 3 years. Could you please confirm the 
correct warranty period." 
 
ANSWER 110: 
 
Yes, the requirement is that the warranty is valid for three years. 
 
QUESTION 111: 
 
"Pricing: in accordance with the tender documents all prices shall be quoted DDP (Incoterms 
2000) but on the other hand shall EXCLUDE all duties and taxes (incl. VAT) – hence we 
understand the term DDP (Delivered Duty Paid) misleading as all relevant duties should be 
excluded from pricing. Could you please once again confirm that all deliveries imported are 
exempt from customs duties, VAT, other taxes or duties, which would actually lead to pricing 
in accordance with DDU although officially stipulated as DDP?" 
 
ANSWER 111: 
 
The supplier delivers the goods to the buyer cleared from customs , bearing all the risks and 
applicable costs in bringing the goods to the specified place of destination. Therefore, the 
Incoterm applicable is DDP, excluding all duties and taxes applicable to their importation and 
VAT, from which the supplier is exempt (based on the Financing Agreement between the 
European Commission and Montenegro). Please also refer to the article 12.2 of the Instruction 
to Tenderers for more information about pricing. Note: The supplier is advised to initiate steps 
to obtain documentation required for customs clearance in good time in order to avoid 
shipment delays at the border crossings. 
 
QUESTION 112: 

"Instructions to tenderers. Tender guarantee. On page 6 of 14 the tender guarantee is said to 
be 30000 €. However in page 11 of 14 the same tender guarantee is set at 32000 €. Could you 
please confirm which is the correct amount?" 
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ANSWER 112: 
 
The amount in the Article 22 of the Instructions to Tenderers is typing mistake. Therefore, the 
amount of the tender guarantee is 30,000€, as specified in the Procurement Notice 
 
QUESTION 113: 

"In Annex 2; technical specifications, the specified transmitters are expected to be 
upgradable to DVBT-2. Should tenderers quote this upgrade, or just confirm their 
equipments are upgradable? Will the tender evaluation take into account the costs of offering 
DVBT-2 compilant equipment?" 
 
ANSWER 113: 
 
The Bidder must confirm that the equipment is DVB-T2 upgradable. That means that the 
upgrade from DVB-T to DVB-T2 must be possible simply by uploading the new software if 
necessary with the minimum additional hardware to be plugged in to existing hardware and 
performing this upgrade on site (without sending the equipment back to factory).  
 
QUESTION 114: 

"In Annex 2, technical specifications, the Power efficiency required is 95%. We believe this 
is impossible to achieve. Could you please clarify if you are referring to the power factor?" 
 
ANSWER 114: 
 
The value required for power efficiency 95 %, which is obtained by using an Active Power 
Corrector built in the Transmitters. 
 
QUESTION 115: 

"In Annex 2, technical specifications, one of the requirements for the 1000W and 500W 
transmitters is that they should be Air Cooled. However, it is a standard among most 
manufacturers that transmitters with output power under 1KW should be air cooled. Can 
tenderers offer 500W and 1000W air cooled transmitters?" 
 
ANSWER 115: 
 
In the tender Technical specification is clearly assigned for which transmitters the end user is 
requesting air-cooled or liquid-cooled system, depending on the geographical location and the 
climate conditions on the site. These clarifications are allowing potential bidders to offer Air 
Cooled solution for 500 W power level. 


